
MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Special Meeting to Consider Call-in

DATE: Wednesday, 24 July 2019
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber - Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representation  

To receive apologies for absence in accordance with Regulation 7 (6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001.

2  Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  

To invite Members of the Committee to make any declarations of pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interest in connection with the items on this agenda.

Overview and Scrutiny Issues for the Committee

3  Call-In of Cabinet Decision Cab.10.7.2019/6 - Appropriation of Land at Penny 
Pie Park for Highway Purposes  (Pages 3 - 84)

To consider a report of the Executive Director Core Services (Item 3a attached) in 
respect of: a Call-in request of a Cabinet decision (Item 3b attached); the minute 
from the Cabinet meeting (Item 3c attached); and the Cabinet report regarding the 
Appropriation of land at Penny Pie Park for Highway Purposes (Item 3d attached).

Enquiries to Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer

Email scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

mailto:scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


To: Chair and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee:-

Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, Carr, T. Cave, Clarke, Felton, Fielding, 
Frost, Gollick, Green, Daniel Griffin, Hand-Davis, Hayward, Higginbottom, Hunt, 
W. Johnson, Leech, Lodge, Lofts, Makinson, McCarthy, Mitchell, Newing, Noble, 
Phillips, Richardson, Smith, Stowe, Sumner, Tattersall, Williams, Wilson, 
Wraith MBE and Wright together with co-opted Members  and Statutory Co-opted 
Member Ms K. Morritt (Parent Governor Representative)

Electronic Copies Circulated for Information
Sarah Norman, Chief Executive
Andrew Frosdick, Executive Director Core Services
Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management
Michael Potter, Service Director, Business Improvement and Communications
Martin McCarthy, Service Director, Governance, Members and Business Support
Press

Witnesses
Item 3 (2.00pm)

 Councillor Tim Cheetham, Cabinet Spokesperson - Place (Regeneration and 
Culture)

 Matt Gladstone, Executive Director - Place
 David Shepherd, Service Director - Regeneration and Culture
 Rachel Allington - Major Projects Group Leader
 Ian Wilson, Group Manager – Highways and Engineering



Report of the Executive Director Core Services
and the Executive Director Core Services, 

to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
on Wednesday 24 July 2019 

Call in of Cabinet Decision Cab.10.7.2019/6 regarding the Appropriation of land at Penny Pie 
Park for Highway Purposes

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report provides Members with the necessary information required to consider the call-in 
request (at item 3b) received in relation to BMBC Cabinet decision Cab.10.7.2019/6 regarding 
the Appropriation of Land at Penny Pie Park for Highway Purposes.

1.2 In accordance with the BMBC procedure for the call-in of cabinet decisions, the requisite 
number of appropriate Members supported this call-in request ahead of the statutory deadline in 
relation to the BMBC Cabinet meeting held on 10th June 2019.

1.3 The Chair of the Scrutiny Committee has exercised their right to seek an urgent meeting of the 
Committee to deal with the matter as an urgent item in recognition of the public’s current 
interest in this matter and in recognition that the next scheduled meeting of the Committee (10th 
September) approximates to the intended date for the signing of relevant contracts for this 
scheme. 

2.0 Background 

2.1 The decision taken at the Cabinet meeting of 10th July is presented in the minutes from the 
meeting at item 3c to this report 

2.2 The purpose of the report received by BMBC Cabinet on 10th July was to inform Members of the 
responses received from members of the public following the appropriation consultation 
procedure carried out under Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972 as agreed in the 
approved A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement cabinet report 
(Cab.25.07.18/15). In addition, the report outlined the considerations of whether approximately 
1.133 hectares (11,330 square metres) of Penny Pie Park is no longer required for the purposes 
for which it is currently held and may be used instead, for highway purposes.

2.3 The Cabinet report (presented at item 3d to this report) set out the officer assessment and 
consideration of the representations / objections received from members of the public and the 
recommended conclusion after taking account of these representations.

2.4 The decision of Cabinet was that, under Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972, having 
considered and assessed the representations received that the open space shown in Appendix 
1 to the report forming approximately 1.133 hectares (11,330 square metres) of Penny Pie Park, 
no longer be required for the purposes for which it is currently held and may be used instead for 
highway purposes.

3.0 Call-In Position

3.1 The proposition of the Members who have requested this decision be called-in suggests that 
Cabinet wrongly concluded that the land known as Penny Pie Park was no longer needed as a 
park because they were presented with misleading and incomplete evidence, meaning that a 
sound decision could not be made in good faith.

3.2 The formal call-in request, containing the reasons in support of the proposition to call-in the 
decision and alternate options presented for consideration is presented at item 3b to this report 

Page 3

Item 3a



4.0 Invited Witnesses

4.1 The following experts have been invited to today’s meeting to answer questions from the 
committee:

 Councillor Tim Cheetham, Cabinet Spokesperson - Place (Regeneration and Culture)
 Matt Gladstone, Executive Director - Place
 David Shepherd, Service Director - Regeneration and Culture
 Rachel Allington - Major Projects Group Leader
 Ian Wilson, Group Manager – Highways and Engineering

5.0 Possible Outcomes

5.1 If the Scrutiny Committee supports the Cabinet’s original decision, this decision stands and can 
be implemented from the date of the Scrutiny Committee concerned.

5.2 If the Scrutiny Committee supports the Members’ request it can:

(i) Refer the matter back to cabinet with a recommendation for an alternate solution

(ii) Refer the matter to the Full Council for debate at its next available meeting, which may agree 
to refer the matter back to Cabinet for reconsideration.

6.0 Background Papers and Useful Links

The full 105 responses are available to the decision makers to view via Barnsley MBC Legal 
services.

A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement approved Cabinet report 
(Cab.25.07.2018/15): Restricted Item by virtue of paragraph 5 section 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (legal proceedings)

A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement Planning Application Reference: 
2018/0965: https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MID=5296

Jobs and Business Plan 2014 – 2017 (3 year review): 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/5023/jobs-and-business-plan-2014-2017.pdf

Housing Strategy 2014 -2033: https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/housing/housing-
strategies/housing-strategy/

Adoption of the Local Plan Cabinet report (cab12.12.2018/8): 
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5172&Ver=4

Barnsley’s Adopted Local Plan and Policies Map

If you would like to inspect background papers for this report, please email 
governance@barnsley.gov.uk so that appropriate arrangements can be made

7.0 Officer Contact

Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer, 16th July 2019

Page 4

https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MID=5296
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/5023/jobs-and-business-plan-2014-2017.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/housing/housing-strategies/housing-strategy/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/housing/housing-strategies/housing-strategy/
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5172&Ver=4


Call in request reference CAB 10/7/19/6
 Reasons for seeking a review of the decision
 
We feel that the Cabinet wrongly concluded that the land known as Penny Pie Park was no 
longer needed as a park because they were presented with misleading and incomplete 
evidence, meaning that a sound decision could not be made in good faith.
 
In particular the Cabinet report:
 

1. Relied on the use of a flawed and unrepresentative usage survey.

2. Failed to fairly represent the extensive level of public opposition to the scheme and 
the objections received.

3. Failed to give due weight to the fact that the park was designated as public green 
space in the Council’s own Local Plan, agreed in January 2019.

4. Was misleading in its assertion that only 1.2 hectares of the park was being used, 
when the proximity of 3 lanes of traffic will render the entire park un-useable.

5. Misrepresented the mitigation measures for the loss of green space as effective 
when they were in fact detrimental.

6. Failed to fairly consider alternative solutions including modal shift.

7. Failed to consider potential new development proposals in the area such as a new 
school.

8. Was misleading in its reference to queueing on M1 and pressure from Highways 
England.

9. Failed to give sufficient weight to the adverse effects on the local community of 
increased noise and air pollution as a result of the scheme.

 
Proposed alternative course of action
 

1. Retention of the land known as Penny Pie Park as public green space.

2. Seek alternative traffic management schemes which do not require appropriation of 
this land for Highways purposes eg re-phasing traffic lights, active travel schemes, 
improved public transport network, less invasive road widening schemes.

Item 3b

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated June 2014 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Request to the Chair of the [  ] Scrutiny 
Committee to Call-In a Decision of the Cabinet / Spokesperson taken on 
 [                                      ] 

Title of Report: Report Ref. No. 
Cab. 

Call-In Requested by: 

Date …………… 

Call-In Request supported by: 

Reasons for seeking a Review of the Decision 

(Please continue on a separate sheet, if necessary) 

Proposed Alternative Course of Action 

(Please continue on a separate sheet, if necessary) 

Notes: 

1. Please insert title of relevant Scrutiny Committee and date of Cabinet
meeting.  A relevant Scrutiny Committee is one which includes the subject
matter of the decision in question within its Terms of Reference.

2. Call-In can be requested by any Elected Member who is not a Cabinet
Member and a voting Co-oted Member for an education matter.  The request
must be supported by four other Members.

3. This form must be returned to the Chief Executive by 4.30 p.m. on the fourth
working day after Cabinet has taken the decision in question (normally
Tuesday).  For delegated decisions by Cabinet Spokespersons, the form
should be returned by 4.30 p.m. on the third working day after any
notification.  Members may register their support by email.

Cllr Peter Fielding
   16/7/2019

Cllr Hannah Kitching; Cllr David Greenhough; Cllr Jake Lodge; Cllr Steve Hunt

10/7/19

Overview and 

10/7/2019/6Appropriation of land at Penny Pie Park for Highways 
purposes

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes Extract from the BMBC Cabinet meeting held on 10th July 2019

Minute 31.  Appropriation of land at Penny Pie Park for highway purposes 
(Cab.10.7.2019/6)

The Leader welcomed to Cabinet members of the public who were in attendance for 
this item. Cabinet acknowledged the concerns raised by some members of the public 
but equally noted concerns raised as regards congestion in and out of the town on a 
main arterial route. Officers were asked to again outline the need for the scheme to 
be undertaken and the alternative approaches that had been considered. A member 
of the public was invited to ask a question of Cabinet and his point was addressed. 
Whilst Cabinet agreed the recommendations set out in the report it was again 
emphasised that the Council would work with community groups such as the Friends 
of Penny Pie Park to ensure that all stakeholders would continue to play a part in 
reaching as practicable an outcome as possible.

RESOLVED that, under Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972, having 
considered and assessed the representations received that the open space shown in 
Appendix 1 to the report forming approximately 1.133 hectares (11,330 square 
metres) of Penny Pie Park, no longer be required for the purposes for which it is 
currently held and may be used instead for highway purposes.

Item 3c

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

This matter is a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has been included 
in the relevant Forward 

REPORT OF THE PLACE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TO CABINET  
10th July 2019

Appropriation of Land at Penny Pie Park for Highway Purposes 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet of the responses received from 
members of the public following the appropriation consultation procedure carried out 
under Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972 as agreed in the approved 
A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement cabinet report 
(Cab.25.07.18/15). In addition, this report outlines to Cabinet, the considerations of 
whether approximately 1.133 hectares (11,330 square metres) of Penny Pie Park is 
no longer required for the purposes for which it is currently held and may be used 
instead, for highway purposes.

1.2 This report sets out the officer assessment and consideration of the representations 
/ objections received from members of the public and the recommended conclusion 
after taking account of these representations.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet:

2.2 Decide, under Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972, having 
considered and assessed the representations received that the open space 
shown in Appendix 1 forming approximately 1.133 hectares (11,330 square 
metres) of Penny Pie Park,  is no longer required for the purposes for which it 
is currently held and may be used instead for highway purposes.

3. INTRODUCTION

3.1 In July 2018, Cabinet approved the A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction 
Improvement scheme (Cab.25.07.2018/15 refers) which considered the options and 
outlined the preferred solution to address congestion on the A628 Dodworth Road / 
Broadway Junction, between the town centre and M1Junction 37. That approved in 
principle the appropriation of up to 6 hectares of land. The Service Director for 
Regeneration and Culture, was authorised to undertake the statutory consultation 
and then report the results of that consultation to Cabinet, assessing the 
representations received and making a recommendation as to whether, in the light 
of the representations, the land should be appropriated or not. The land now 

Item 3d

Page 11



2

proposed to be appropriated consists of a smaller area of Penny Pie Park, which is 
identified on the plan attached at Appendix 1 from public open space to highway 
purposes. 

Planning Permission 

3.2 On Tuesday, 18th December 2018, the Council’s Planning Regulatory Board (PRB) 
resolved to grant a planning application (Ref - 2018/0965) to make improvements to 
the A628 Dodworth Road, Broadway junction, layout attached at Appendix 2. Prior 
to the application being considered by PRB, a request was made to the Secretary of 
State, to ask him to “call in” the application, meaning that he would become the 
decision maker. In light of this request, the Council agreed not to issue the decision, 
pending confirmation from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government, as to whether or not the Secretary of State has decided to call in the 
application. Following the Secretary of State’s decision not to call in the planning 
application, the planning decision notice was made public on 18th February 2019.

Appropriation Notice

3.3 It is a legal requirement that the Council designates the land on which the works are 
to be carried out for the relevant statutory purpose; which in this case is for highway 
purposes. This is known as “Appropriation”. The appropriation process is a standard 
procedure, separate to the planning process, that the Council has to carry out. 
There is a legal requirement under the Local Government Act 1972 to issue a public 
notice and to consider any representations or objections.

3.4 The Council published a notice of the proposed appropriation in the Barnsley 
Chronicle on both the 8th and 15th March 2019, as required by Section 122 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, inviting representations to be made in writing to the 
Council no later than 8th April 2019. The notice and plans were advertised on the 
Council’s website. Copies are attached at Appendix 3 to this report.

Consultation responses

3.5  105 letters were received in response to the Council’s notice.

3.6 A summary of all the responses is set out in Appendix 4. All the letters received are 
available for the decision makers to view via Barnsley MBC Legal Services.

3.7 The grounds of objections regarding the perceived specific impact on the proposed 
appropriation are summarised as follows: 

• Noise nuisance;
• Loss of mature trees;
• Impact on conservation areas;
• concerns of  potential increased parking and how traffic congestion 

will affect locals;
• Concerned that this initial ‘land grab’ will be followed by further 

appropriations;
• That the park is a public amenity that gives pleasure to thousands of 

people;

Page 12



3

• That the park is used by considerably more people in the local 
community than the number who may benefit from any proposed 
school expansion;

• That the area is deficient in public open space, some parts being 
more than 800m from a public park or garden. Many local dwellings 
are flats or houses with limited garden.

4. PROPOSAL AND JUSTIFICATION 

Statutory Powers and the Law

4.1 Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that “the Council may 
appropriate for any purpose which the Council is authorised by statute, to acquire 
land by agreement, any land which belongs to it and is no longer required for the 
purpose for which it is held immediately before the appropriation”.

4.2  The key procedural points are;

1. The land must already belong to the Council;
2. The land must be no longer required for the purpose for which it is currently 

appropriated; and
3. The purpose for which the Council is appropriating must be authorised by 

statute.

4.3 The case of Dowty Boulton Paul v Wolverhampton Corporation (1973) 
established that the local authority is the sole judge of whether or not the land in 
question is not required for the purpose for which it is held immediately before the 
appropriation and its decision cannot be challenged in the absence of bad faith.

4.4 The principles of the Dowty decision were examined in the relatively recent case of 
R (Maries) v Merton LBC (2014) EWHC 2689 (Admin) and the judge distilled the 
principles which apply to the consideration of any such appropriation. These are as 
follows:- 

1) Whether land is still or is no longer required for a particular purpose, meaning 
no longer needed in the public interest of the locality for that purpose, is a 
question for the local authority, subject to Wednesbury principles, and not the 
court;

2) The statute is concerned with relative needs or uses for which public land has 
been or may be put. It does not require it to fall into disuse before the authority 
may appropriate it for some other purpose;  and

3) The authority is entitled, when exercising its appropriation power, to seek to 
strike the balance between comparative local (public interest) needs: between 
the need for one use of the land and another with the wider community interests 
at heart. It is for it to keep under review the needs of the locality and is entitled to 
take a broad view of local needs. 

4.5 The Council must apply these principles in evaluation of the appropriation proposal 
before it. In doing so, the Council  is required to consider objections to its view on 
whether the land is required for its present purpose, as well as objections to its view 
that it should be appropriated for a new purpose.

Page 13



4

4.6 As with most administrative decisions made by public authorities, the decision to 
appropriate land is subject to challenge by judicial review. The Council must be able 
to demonstrate the purpose for the appropriation and that it has taken all of the 
relevant considerations into account and not taken any irrelevant considerations 
into account. In particular, the Council must consider, having regard to the proposed 
new facilities for park users, and in the light of the representations made following 
the consultation exercise, whether the part of Penny Pie Park to which the proposed 
appropriation relates, is no longer required for the purposes for which it is presently 
held by applying the principles noted above.

4.7 The Council’s decision must be based on the available evidence and be rational in 
the sense that it cannot be said that no reasonable local authority could, on the 
evidence before it, have arrived at that decision: Associated Provincial Picture 
Houses Ltd v Wednesbury Corporation (1948) 1 KB 223).

Historic Uses of the Land

4.8 The Council’s statutory predecessor (The Mayor Aldermen and Burgesses of the 
County Borough of Barnsley) acquired the large majority of the land forming Penny 
Pie Park by way of conveyance dated 30th June 1948.  At that time, the land was 
former brickworks as mentioned above.  The land conveyed by the 1948 
conveyance is not subject to restrictive covenants in favour of the former owner and 
the land is not held subject to charitable trusts. At a point in the 1960s or 1970s 
(exact date unknown), it appears that the Council took the decision to lay out the 
park in its current form and its use has been as public open space since then. The 
park was registered voluntarily at HM Land Registry in 2007 and the Official Copies 
and Plan, together with a 1931 conveyance mentioned (now land under Pogmoor 
Road) is contained within  Appendix 5. The historical timeline is detailed below: 

1861-1872:  It is understood anecdotally that between 1861-1872, White Hill or 
Penny Pie Colliery was located within the site boundary, assumed to be centred 
around the two shafts seen on the 1893 map (contained within Appendix 5). 
Due to the dates of the maps available, this colliery does not appear on any of 
the maps, so it is not known where the colliery buildings were located.

1893: The next map, dated 1893, shows the site to be occupied by a brick 
works (contained within Appendix 5). This is located against the northern site 
boundary, with a branch line from the railway line leading to the brickworks. To 
the south and east of the brickworks, two clay pits are labelled, which occupy 
most of the site between the brickworks and Dodworth Road to the south. A 
tramway is shown which connects the clay pits to the brickworks. Two old shafts 
are also shown in the centre of the site.

1906: The map of 1906 (contained within  Appendix 5) shows the clay pits and 
tramway have extended, with the tramway now shown to pass underneath 
Dodworth Road to a new pit in the southeast corner of the road. The map of 
1931 (contained within Appendix 5) shows the clay pits to have extended further 
east and south, beyond the site boundary, and the tramway has been 
repositioned and now passes beneath Dodworth Road further west than it did 
previously. Several houses are shown along the south side of Dodworth Road, 
adjacent to the crossroads.

Page 14



5

1956: The map of 1956 (contained within Appendix 5) shows the beginning of 
the closure of the brickworks, with the tramway and western clay pits no longer 
shown on the maps. By the 1960 map (contained within Appendix 5), the 
buildings associated with the brickworks have been removed, and the portion of 
the site to the northeast of the crossroads appears to have been infilled, with no 
clay pits shown. It is understood anecdotally that the clay pits on site were 
backfilled with domestic waste. The two old shafts in the centre of the site are 
still shown, and are now labelled as disused. The branch line from the main line 
to the south has also been removed. In the south east corner of the site, south 
of Dodworth road, disused clay pits are still shown. The entrance road into the 
brickworks from Dodworth Road is still shown. At this time, Pogmoor Road and 
Broadway have been constructed.

  1969: The next map, dated 1969-1980 (contained within Appendix 5) shows a 
filling station on the south side of Dodworth Road, in the southeast corner of the 
site. To the south of this filling station, the former clay pits are labelled as a 
refuse tip. An electricity substation is also shown just north of the crossroads, 
on the east side of Pogmoor Road. 

1973-1978: The 1973-1978 map (contained within Appendix 5) shows that 
factories have been built on the refuse south of the filling station. A model 
railway is shown towards the north of the site with a few new buildings adjacent. 
The two shafts in the centre of the site are no longer shown. 

1983-1991: On the 1983-1991 map (contained within Appendix 5), the area to 
the northeast of the crossroads is labelled as recreation grounds, with trees 
located along Pogmoor Road and Dodworth Road. The crossroads have also 
been modified and enlarged slightly, with a left turn lane from Broadway west 
onto Dodworth Road.

2000: The map of 2000 (contained within Appendix 5) no longer shows the 
model railway. 

2017: The map dated 2017 (contained within Appendix 5) shows the filling 
station to have been removed and replaced with a car park which serves a 
school to the south.

2019:  The most recent image from Google Maps attached at  Appendix 6, 
dated 2019 shows the current features within the park.

Current Land Use

4.9 Penny Pie Park occupies large grounds amounting to 4.59 hectares of land. It is 
well provided for by trees around the edges. However, the majority of the park is 
open grassland in the central areas. It is relatively level throughout with no 
significant topographical undulations. In the north west corner, it contains an 
equipped children’s play area and a multi used games court. A footpath is located 
around the edges. In close proximity to the crossroad it hosts an electricity 
substation which comprise two single storey buildings within a compound. In the 
south east part of the site there is ambulance transfer pad and an associated 
access onto Dodworth Road for when the Embrace Children’s Charity helicopter air 
ambulance is required to land within the park. A further non signal controlled 

Page 15



6

crossing point, which includes a pedestrian refuge in the centre of the road, is 
located nearby provides a crossing point to the opposite side of Dodworth Road and 
Horizon Community College. Both Dodworth Road and Pogmoor Road have bus 
stops along the sections of the road passing next to the park. These are marked out 
within the road and are without a dedicated layby.

Usage Surveys

4.10 Two neutral days were identified to carry out usage surveys within Penny Pie Park. 
The surveys were carried out on Thursday 16th May 2019, a typical term time / 
working, spring, week day and Saturday 18th May 2019 between 8.30am and 7pm 
early evening which took place on a typical spring weekend, not coinciding with any 
public bank holidays / school holidays / football matches. Times were picked to 
coincide with expected busy park times in the day including pre-work and pre-
school in the morning, lunch time, post-school afternoon and post work later 
afternoon / early evening.   

4.11 The weather conditions for both days, as per BBC Weather forecast:
 
Thursday 16th May  2019 7c to 16c with sunny intervals with a moderate breeze
Saturday 18th May 2019 8c to 16c with light clouds and light winds

4.12 The surveys were carried out by physically walking around the park and making 
notes of activity / usage. On Thursday 16th May 2019, one officer carried out the 
usage surveys, on Saturday 18th May 2019 two officers carried out the surveys, one 
officer located in the vicinity of the MUGA / Children’s play area and one officer on 
the flexi pave to the south east entrance, accessed from Dodworth Road, to ensure 
that all activity was accounted for, however this may have potentially resulted in 
some double counting in the numbers and activity. 

4.13 A summary of the findings is shown below: 

Date and Time of Observation: Date and Time of Observation:
Thursday 16th May 2019 Saturday 18th May 2019

Activity type 08:30 
to 
09:00

12:30 
to 
13:00

15:30 
to 
16:00

18:30 
to 
19:00

08:30 
to 
09:00

12:30 
to 
13:00

15:30 
to 
16:00

18:30 
to 
19:00

Dog Walking 2 7 5 4 8 13 13 1
Activity on the Multi Use 
Games Area (MUGA) 

7 0 4 0 0 4 17 5

Children’s using the Play 
Area

0 2 0 8 0 4 17 0

People using the outdoor 
gym 

2 0 0 0 0 0 3 0

People counted using / 
within the story trail / 
natural area

2 0 0 0 0 1 3 23

Resting on the grass / 
Using Benches

0 0 0 0 0 4 6 0

General public walking  
through the park (which is 
also used as short cut / to 

2 3 11 10 2 14 24 4

Page 16



7

Activity type

Date and Time of Observation: Date and Time of Observation:
Thursday 16th May 2019 Saturday 18th May 2019

08:30 
to 
09:00

12:30 
to 
13:00

15:30 
to 
16:00

18:30 
to 
19:00

08:30 
to 
09:00

12:30 
to 
13:00

15:30 
to 
16:00

18:30 
to 
19:00

the convenience store on 
Pogmoor Road) 
School Children walking 
through the park to & from 
Horizon Academy

19 4 108 0 0 0 0 0

Total 34 16 128 22 10 38 83 33

General Observations:

 There was high activity in the week day at school finishing time by pupils and late 
afternoon early evening on the Saturday by adolescent teenagers.

 There was a steady flow of dog walkers, particularly on the Saturday, as well as the 
park being used as a short cut from / to Dodworth Road to Pogmoor village or 
convenience store which is located on Pogmoor Road adjacent to the park. 

4.14 From the observations, Penny Pie Park is perceived to be used principally for 
informal recreational use, dog walking and as a walk through from residential areas, 
convenience store, school, bus stops and town centre.

The Proposed Scheme and its Objectives

Alleviate Congestion

4.15 As detailed in  the A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement cabinet 
report (Cab.25.07.18/15), AECOM were commissioned in 2016 to carry out an 
assessment of the A628 Dodworth Road / Pogmoor Road crossroads to ascertain 
the current capacity of the junction, and also it’s the  future capacity having regard 
to current  committed growth as well as additional planned future growth 
aspirations.  This  report concluded that the Dodworth Road / Pogmoor Road 
crossroads junction is at full capacity once committed developments in the vicinity 
(such as employment sites nearest to M1 Junction 37 Capitol Business Park) are 
factored in.  In addition, a continued increase in traffic congestion could well 
jeopardise progress being made in the reduction of air pollution concentrations in 
the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) between M1 J37 and Dodworth Road / 
Pogmoor Crossroads. Section  5.3  of this Appropriation of Land at Penny Pie Park 
for Highway Purposes cabinet report also provides details of the active travel 
initiative being promoted to encourage modal shift and also an update on the 
current situation of  bus  / rail patronage .  The council is committed to continuing 
the delivery of initiates to encourage  active travel and modal shift, however it is 
recognised that it is unlikely that the modal share of active travel within the borough 
will increase to such an extent that it would not be necessary to improve the 
capacity of the Dodworth Road/Broadway/Pogmoor Road junction.

4.16 In addition, to the environmental impact of the congestion and any potential safety 
benefits, it is also important to recognise the detrimental impact on productivity as a 
result of increased journey times and the potential adverse impact on the town 
centre, which has previously experienced significant leakage of retail expenditure to 
out of town  destinations such as Meadowhall.  To address this the Council is 

Page 17



8

investing substantial amounts into regenerating the town centre but for the benefits 
of these investments to be fully realised it will be important to ensure that key radial 
routes into and out of the town centre remain relatively free-flowing, particularly 
during peak times.

4.17 The evidence therefore shows that there are compelling reasons to increase the 
capacity of the Dodworth Road/Broadway/Pogmoor Road junction based on 
existing congestion and committed development alone. Accordingly, encroachment 
into the public open space is unavoidable to address existing congestion and 
committed development.  The increased capacity would also help accommodate 
further anticipated growth across the borough as identified in the Council’s previous 
Core Strategy and recently adopted Local Plan (cab12.12.2018/8) and the 
aspirations of the borough as identified in the Council’s  Economic and Housing 
Strategies, further strengthening the case to appropriate the land for highway 
purposes.

4.18 Therefore to address the congestion issues at A628 Dodworth Road / Pogmoor 
Road crossroads, a scheme has been approved that replaces the existing signal 
controlled crossroads with a new multi lane gyratory road system, which would be 
built within Penny Pie Park that is located immediately adjacent to the crossroads.

4.19  It is evident that the existing crossroads junction operates over capacity at the 
present time, resulting in substantial queuing in all directions during peak hours. 
This would be addressed by removing the conflict that occurs between the right 
turns onto Broadway from the A628 Dodworth Road and the westbound movement 
towards the motorway from Pogmoor Road. It is predicted that this would greatly 
improve capacity for traffic on Dodworth Road in both directions, which would lead 
to less queuing.

4.20 The new road system would see the road system widened to up to 3 lanes of traffic. 
The road system has been designed as a one way loop. 3 lanes of traffic would 
feed into the gyratory from Dodworth Road inbound towards the town centre. A left 
turn lane would provide access to Pogmoor Road. Inbound from Pogmoor Road, 3 
lanes would feed into the system with one lane going onwards into the town centre 
and 2 lanes coming back around to connect with Dodworth Road heading 
westbound to the M1 and new left turn lanes to Horizon and Broadway. 

Improved Crossing Points

4.21 New traffic signal controlled junctions and toucan / pelican crossings would be 
installed in each of the 3 corners of the new road system and at the reconfigured 
junction with Horizon Community College. The existing section of Pogmoor Road 
adjacent to the park would be downgraded and replaced by the new road system 
for through traffic. Those properties and Whitehill Avenue would connect to the 
gyratory via provision of a dedicated left turn lane and a new left turn only junction.

Shared Footway / Cycleway 

4.22 The gyratory would include a 3m wide shared footway and cycleway located around 
all sides and passing through the middle of the retained parkland in the centre of 

Page 18



9

the gyratory. In addition, the introduction of signalised Toucan crossing points will, 
provide safe routes for pedestrians and cyclists in the area encouraging modal shift.

Noise Reduction Measures

4.23 A 1m high gabion wall would be built along the northern and eastern edge of the 
new road for sound attenuation purposes. The plans also include fencing to 
separate the retained areas of park from the road system. Additional noise 
mitigation measures are shown to the west and north adjacent Pogmoor Road and 
the boundary with the railway line/Pogmoor Recreation Ground in the form of 1.5m 
high gabion basket wall and to the east in the form of 3m acoustic fence which 
would sit alongside the existing vegetation on that boundary to limit noise affecting 
the houses beyond this boundary located on Grosvenor Walk and Dodworth Road. 
A similar 2.4m high fence would then be built in the grass verge further to the south 
on the other side of Dodworth Road for the purposes of reducing sound levels at 
Firs Care Home at the side of the existing entrance to Horizon.

Loss of Greenspace Mitigations

4.24 To compensate for the impact of the scheme on the greenspace known as Penny 
Pie Park, the facilities currently on offer will be enhanced, and a high quality, 
functional and attractive environment for the neighbourhood area will be created. A 
plan showing the proposed improvements to Penny Pie Park, which have been 
developed in consultation with the Friends of Penny Pie Park, who are a constituted 
community group, is attached at  Appendix 7. Consultation with this established 
community group will continue during design refinements and delivery. 

Enhanced Children’s Play Area 

4.25 The current play area is a local equipped play area (LEAP) and has 5 items of play 
equipment, but as part of the proposals would be upgraded to Neighbourhood 
Equipped Play Area (NEAP).  This means that it would have no less than 8 items of 
play equipment, and would be designed to serve a substantial residential area with 
a minimum play zone of 1,000sqm. The NEAP would be located in the retained 
section of the park that would be preserved to the north of the new road system, 
which is the approximate location of the current play area. 

4.26 The nature story trail is largely unaffected by the proposals, but where necessary 
any features that need to be moved will be re-sited within the park.

New Multi Use Games Area 

4.27 As part of the proposals, a new multi-use games area will be provided in the section 
of the park that would be preserved to the north of the new road system in the 
vicinity of the children’s play area, this has a catchment area of 1200 meters

Outdoor Gym

 4.28 The current Outdoor Gym will be re-sited in the section of the park that would be 
preserved to the north of the new road system in the vicinity of the children’s play 
area and new multi-use games area.

Page 19



10

Improvements to Pogmoor Recreation Ground and Sugden’s Recreation Ground

4.29 Furthermore enhancements will be provided at Pogmoor and Sugden’s Recreation 
Grounds located nearby, shown on plan attached at Appendix 8. This would consist 
of the upgrade of the equipped children’s play area from Equipped Play Area (EPA) 
to Neighbourhood Equipped Area for Play (NEAP) standard at Sugden’s Recreation 
Ground at Stocks Lane, which has a wider catchment area of 1,000 meters, as 
opposed to 400 meters. Pogmoor Recreation Ground will benefit from improved 
pedestrian access with provision of footpath, benches and dog fouling bins.  

Current Situation Proposed Scheme / Impact / 
Mitigations

Size of park 4.59 hectares 3.46 hectares

Crossing 
points

5 pedestrian signalised 
crossing  points

1 uncontrolled crossing points

14 toucan (pedestrian and cycle) 
signalised crossing points 

Trees Penny Pie Park:

Current number of trees = 239 
(including recently planted 
community orchard of mixed 
trees).

Penny Pie Park:

Removal of 75 trees (table 4 - tree 
survey, planning documents 
reference: 2018/0965)

Planting of over 100 new extra 
heavy standard trees (landscape 
architect’s current estimate)

There will be a minimum of 264 
trees in Penny Pie Park after 
completion of the works and we are 
still working with the landscape 
architect to see if this can be 
increased and incorporated into the 
design / usage. 

On-site play 
provision 

Penny Pie Park:

The local equipped play area 
(LEAP) with a catchment area 
400 meters

5 number of equipment pieces 

Multi Use Games area (which 
has a catchment area of 1200 
meters)

Story trail

Outdoor Gym Equipment

Penny Pie Park:

Upgraded to a Neighbourhood 
Equipped Play Area (NEAP) with a 
catchment area 1000 meters

 8 number of equipment pieces 

New Multi Use Games area (which 
has a catchment area of 1200 
meters)

Story trail retained with some pieces 
re-sited

 Outdoor Gym Equipment retained 
and re-sited

Page 20



11

Current Situation Proposed Scheme / Impact / 
Mitigations

On-site 
footpaths

Penny Pie Park: 

Flexi-pave to the north of the 
park from Grosvenor Walk, 
behind the nature trail and play 
equipment linking to Pogmoor 
Road.

Penny Pie Park:

Flexi-pave to the north of the park 
from Grosvenor Walk, behind the 
nature trail and play equipment 
linking to Pogmoor Road.

In addition, the creation of a new 
flexi-pave 3 metre shared foot / 
cycle path to follow current desire 
line through the central park area 
linking Pogmoor Road to Dodworth 
Road providing a clear dedicated 
route. 

Off-site 
provision 

Pogmoor Recreation Ground:

Football Pitch 

Pogmoor Recreation Ground:

Retained Football Pitch

Improved pedestrian access with 
provision of footpath, benches and 
dog fouling bins.  

Off-site 
provision

Sugden’s Recreation Ground:

Equipped Play Area (EPA) with 
a catchment area of 400 
meters

3 pieces of equipment 

Sugden’s Recreation Ground:

Upgraded to Neighbourhood 
Equipped Play Area (NEAP) with a 
catchment area 1000 meters

8 number of equipment pieces

Air Quality

4.30 Version 2 of the air quality assessment was submitted in July 2018, in support of 
planning application 2018/0965 and the impact on air quality was a key 
consideration for Planning Regulatory Board. The air quality implications of the 
proposal have been explored, given that vehicle emission levels along Dodworth 
Road because of its heavy use and the amount of queuing traffic, have resulted in it 
being designated an Air Quality Management Area. Again, in principle, enabling 
traffic to flow more freely through this area has the potential to deliver air quality 
benefits to the existing residents in the immediate vicinity. This is not straight 
forward however as the results of the modelling has shown that whilst some 
locations, especially those nearest the crossroads would be benefitted, conditions 
would be worsened where the properties are located on the approach to the 
gyratory on Dodworth Road from the town centre.

4.31 However, these increases have been assessed as “slight adverse” and in those 
locations predicting an increase in concentrations of nitrogen dioxide gas, these 
concentrations would remain within the air quality objective. Elsewhere, the scheme 
is predicted to have “negligible” or a “slight to substantial beneficial” impact. For this 
reason the Air Quality Pollution Control Officer has resolved not to object to the 

Page 21



12

application. Accordingly, where emissions are forecast to increase, because they 
will remain within the objective, the effects are not considered to be sufficient to 
warrant objection. Moreover, in the areas where the modelling exercise predicted 
concentrations to be currently above the objective, residents stand to benefit from 
the scheme. Accordingly, the proposal complies with Core Strategy policy CSP41 
and Local Plan policy AQ1.

Summary

4.32 The decision to award the planning decision was made in accordance with the 
development plan considering the need for the proposal and existing highway 
conditions, the assessment of alternatives including modal shift, impact on Penny 
Pie Park and other material considerations including residential amenity, visual 
impact, highway and pedestrian safety, climate change, flood risk and biodiversity.

4.33 Having regard to the above matters and all others raised in representations, 
Planning Regulatory Board considered that the benefits of the scheme attract great 
weight, primarily due to the lack of viable, alternative options. Although the scheme 
regrettably gives rise to a number of significant adverse impacts and although these 
can be mitigated to some extent, they nonetheless attract substantial weight. On 
balance therefore, whilst the proposal did not comply with the development plan, 
the great weight attributed to the benefits of the scheme was considered to 
outweigh the substantial weight given to the adverse impacts. Accordingly, other 
material considerations exist to justify a departure from the development plan and 
the application was therefore approved subject to the necessary conditions.

4.34 The council holds land for various statutory purposes in order to provide its 
functions. Such land is used only for the purpose of the function for which it was 
originally acquired until such time as the land is disposed of or “appropriated” for 
another purpose.  Appropriation is the statutory procedure to change the purpose 
for which land is held from one statutory purpose to another provided that the land 
is no longer required for the purpose for which it was held immediately before the 
appropriation.

4.35 Based on the evidence provided in this report, and given the comparative needs for 
the alternative use of 1.133ha of the currently designated public open space, it is 
considered that there is a compelling case in the public interest that the 1.133ha of 
land identified in Appendix 1 is no longer required for the purposes of public open 
space and that the council appropriates from public open space to highway 
purposes.

5. CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATIVE APPROACHES

5.1 A comprehensive analysis of all the alternative approaches that were considered 
and discounted during the development of the preferred scheme design were 
included in the approved A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement 
cabinet report (“Cab25.07.2018/15”). The detail is summarised below:

5.2 Do nothing:  The current congestion levels and capacity constraints, in addition the 
level of traffic that will be generated from current planning permissions and together 
with the employment and housing opportunities identified in the existing Core 
Strategy, means that without highways improvements or a massive shift from 
private car usage to public transport and active travel (which the council are fully 

Page 22



13

committed to encouraging), the future growth aspirations of the borough, i.e. the 
current Core Strategy will be unable to be accommodated.

5.3 Modal Shift: The starting point for the council when seeking to address capacity 
issues on the network is to consider whether or not it would be possible to achieve 
the necessary modal shift from private car usage to more sustainable modes of 
transport such as public transport or active travel (cycling & walking). 

5.4 In terms of active travel, the Council is involved in a number of initiatives to promote 
walking and cycling. As detailed in section 4.13 of Cab.25.07.2018/15, over the past 
4 years, £3.9m external capital funding has been secured and provided improved 
and new cycleways with the borough and £1.1m external revenue funding has been 
secured to promote and encourage active travel in the borough. The Council is 
currently developing its Active Travel Strategy and will seek to ensure that walking 
and cycling routes are considered and promoted throughout the design and delivery 
of any potential highway improvements in the borough.  However it is recognised 
that it is unlikely that the modal share of active travel within the borough will 
increase to such an extent that it would not be necessary to improve the capacity of 
the Dodworth Road / Broadway / Pogmoor Road junction.

5.5 Public Transport, Bus Patronage: As identified in section 4.14 of 
Cab.25.07.2018/15, bus patronage has been falling within the borough and this 
mirrors both the national and regional trend. To address this, the Barnsley Bus 
Partnership was established and is working with the commercial and statutory 
public transport sector to enhance the bus network, services and ticketing initiatives.  
However, the increasing congestion on Dodworth Road affecting journey times for 
buses using this corridor between Barnsley Town Centre and Dodworth Road not 
only makes bus use less attractive as a potential travel mode to members of the 
public, but in a deregulated bus market, the financial viability of providing a bus 
service along Dodworth Road becomes more difficult to justify. In addition to the 
above, the Dodworth Road corridor does not benefit from any bus priority measures 
largely due not being able to be accommodated within the confines of the existing 
highway. The Council acquired a parcel of land at the time when the Dodworth by-
pass was constructed, for a potential park and ride. Regrettably, due to the confines 
of the site, the unfeasibility of providing bus priority measures in the vicinity and 
park and ride not proving to be as effective as was originally envisaged elsewhere 
within the borough, the proposal could not be progressed.

5.6 Public Transport, Rail Patronage: In contrast, the borough has seen a notable 
increase in rail patronage which mirrors the national trend. This has been 
particularly evident of the Hallam Line which can in part be attributed to the 
introduction of the fast Sheffield to Leeds service via Meadowhall, Barnsley and 
Wakefield Kirkgate.  As detailed in 4.15 of Cab.25.07.2018/15, the Council 
published its Rail Vision in 2015, which is in the process of being updated to reflect 
significant changes that are likely to emerge through Northern Powerhouse Rail and 
HS2 as well as the commitments contained within the various franchises.  
Significant engagement with Network Rail, South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 
Executive, both city regions, rail operators and numerous other stakeholders has 
taken place. The outcome being that it is not possible to significantly increase rail 
frequencies along the Penistone Line to encourage modal shift for those commuting 

Page 23



14

into the borough from the West. In addition there are no proposals to increase the 
frequency of services along the Hallam Line within existing franchises so there is no 
prospect in the short to medium term of delivering rail improvements that would 
sufficiently offset car journeys along Dodworth Road during peak times.

5.7 Based on the above, the existing highway network has to be expanded to increase 
capacity. In terms of design options, BMBC Highways, Engineering and 
Transportation Service produced a number of alternative options to alleviate the 
congestion issues. (A summary of the options tested and discounted is shown 
below; full details are within the associated appendices).

5.8 Option A (see Appendix 3 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15) - The 
construction of a roundabout in the greenspace between roadway and Horizon 
Community College and a diverted Pogmoor Road (16 variants were tested). The 
short and limited stacking space for queuing vehicles limits capacity of this option 
for certain movements, and coupled with three adjacent road junctions, present co-
ordination challenges. 

5.9 Option B (see Appendix 4 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15) - The 
construction of left turn flares at the existing crossroads (4 variants were tested). 
This option requires Compulsory Purchase of third party land, along with 
development in the greenspace and did not resolve all forecast issues. 

5.10 Option C (see Appendix 5 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15) - The 
construction of a roundabout in the greenspace, linking into the access to Horizon 
Community College and a diverted Pogmoor Road (8 variants were tested). This 
option presents navigational challenges for pedestrians and cyclists and does not 
resolve all forecast capacity issues.

5.11 Option D (see Appendix 6 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15) - The 
construction of a roundabout to replace the existing crossroads. This option 
requires Compulsory Purchase of third party land, along with development in the 
greenspace and did not resolve all forecast capacity issues.

5.12 Option E (see Appendix 7 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15) - The 
construction of a gyratory in the greenspace, with a diverted Pogmoor Road.  This 
option did not resolve all forecast capacity issues.

5.13 Option F (see Appendix 8 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15) - The 
construction of a left turn flare from Dodworth Road (West) into Pogmoor Road.  
This option requires Compulsory Purchase of third party land to accommodate the 
flare, and would severely impact on residents’ vehicle movements to access / 
egress their properties, in addition, this option did not resolve all forecast capacity 
issues.

5.14 Option H (see Appendix 9 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15) - 
Dualling of Dodworth Road between the crossroads and junction 37 of the M1, with 
additional short turn left flares from Dodworth Road in to both Pogmoor and 
Broadway. This option requires Compulsory Purchase of significant third party land 
to accommodate the flare and additional lanes and in addition, this option did not 

Page 24



15

provide a comparable level of capacity when compared to the preferred option G 
(Appendix 1 of previously approved report Cab.25.07.2018/15). 

6. IMPLICATIONS FOR LOCAL PEOPLE/ SERVICE USERS

6.1 One of the Council’s key priorities is to create a thriving and vibrant economy, 
create more and better jobs, good business growth, and to connect local people 
with these opportunities. 

6.2 The delivery of the proposed scheme is expected to secure the facilitation of 
employment and housing opportunities identified in the existing Core Strategy, 
contributing to the provision of employment land to attract new investment and / or 
allowing existing businesses to stay in the area and expand.

6.3 The delivery of any highway improvement scheme will impact on the road users 
during construction.  However, once completed, the scheme will:

 reduce congestion and queue lengths leading to time saving benefits for road 
users;

 improve safety in the vicinity of Horizon Community College; 
 improve cycling and walking routes in the vicinity 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 Consultations have taken place with representatives of the Service Director – 
Finance (S151 Officer).

7.2 The preferred scheme has been previously approved by Cabinet 
(Cab.25.07.2018/15 refers). There are no expected direct financial implications as a 
result of this report.

7.3 It should be noted, however, that should the appropriation decision be challenged 
on a legal basis, then the associated legal costs in relation to this would be incurred 
but are obviously unquantifiable at this stage.

8. EMPLOYEE IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no issues arising directly from this report

9. COMMUNICATIONS IMPLICATIONS

9.1 A robust communications plan has been developed with representatives from 
Executive Director of Core Services. This will be reviewed continually throughout 
the delivery of the project to ensure that timely and accurate information is provided 
through appropriate press releases via local press, social media/website updates, 
local member briefings, public information events and engagement with key 
stakeholders.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 Discussions have been held with local members regarding the scheme. 

Page 25



16

10.2  The council published a notice of the proposed appropriation in the Barnsley 
Chronicle on 8th and 15th March 2019 as required by section 122 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 inviting representations to be made in writing to the Council 
no later than 8th April 2019.  The notice and plans were advertised on the council’s 
website. A copy of the notice is attached at Appendix 3.

10.3 105 letters were received in response to the council’s notice, a summary of all the 
responses is set out in Appendix 4 and the letters are available to the decision 
makers as per section 3.6 of this report. 

10.4 Consultation has taken place with the Friends of Penny Pie Park, who are a 
constituted community group, with regards to the redevelopment designs for the 
remaining park area. Consultation with this established community group will 
continue during design refinements and delivery. 

10.5 Consultation has taken place with representatives of Core Services Directorate 
regarding the financial implications, asset management and risk management 
issues.

10.6 Consultation has taken place with representatives of Communities Directorate, Core 
Services Directorate and Place Directorate regarding the greenspace implications 
and potential compensatory measures.

11. THE CORPORATE PLAN AND THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

11.1 The scheme will contribute to the delivery of the overarching ‘Thriving and Vibrant 
Economy’ priority set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2015 - 2018. 

11.2 The scheme was designed in the short term to ensure delivery of council’s Core 
Strategy, which was the current development plan for the borough until 2026, this 
has now been superseded by the Local Plan (adopted 03.01.2019) up to 2033. The 
scheme will also provide better access to the redeveloped Town Centre from the 
M1 and western side of the borough, contribute delivering the following outcomes:

 Create more and better jobs and good business growth; and  
 Create more and better housing.
 Develop a vibrant Town Centre, and 
 Strengthen our visitor economy. 

12. PROMOTING EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND SOCIAL INCLUSION

12.1 Better connectivity, affordable and inclusive travel, a cleaner environment and a 
healthier population are all key aims of the Barnsley Transport Strategy 2014 – 
2033, and once completed will provide better connectivity and opportunities for local 
people to access work and assisting in addressing social exclusion. 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES

13.1 The project benefits from a detailed risk register which is reviewed on a regular 
basis by officers and the Council’s Strategic Risk and Governance Manager 

Page 26



17

13.2 At the moment the main risk relating to this proposed development is that this report 
is not approved, and the council is unable to appropriate the 1.133 hectares of land 
for highway purposes and is unable to deliver the scheme set out in section 4.15 -
4.26. At that point, it may therefore be appropriate to consider the alternative 
approaches, set out in section 5 of this reports, some of which will have higher (or 
‘worse’) risk profiles than the preferred proposal.

13.3 A project risk register has been developed, and risks relating to land usage; funding, 
consultation and traffic management issues as a result of the development have 
been identified.  It is envisaged that if approval to appropriate the 1.133 hectares of 
land for highway purposes, a detailed project risk register will be produced which 
will become a valuable governance tool for the Strategic Sites Board. 

14. HEALTH, SAFETY AND EMERGENCY RESILIENCE ISSUES

14.1 Health and safety has been considered carefully in the development of the
Project, Health and Safety issues will be identified during scheme preparation and 
addressed as part of the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015.
Road Safety Audits are undertaken at various stages of the highway improvement 
scheme and comprise:-Stage 1 – Completion of preliminary design, Stage 2 – 
Completion of detailed design, Stage 3 – Completion of construction and Stage 4 – 
Monitoring (12 months and 36 months)

15. COMPATIBILITY WITH THE EUROPEAN CONVENTION ON HUMAN RIGHTS

5.1 The delivery of the proposed scheme does not interfere with private property rights. 
The rights of individuals are safeguarded through the statutory planning process of 
securing planning consent and authority to modify the highway network.

16. LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Plan showing the area of land proposed to be appropriated from 
public open space to highway purposes 

Appendix 2 – A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement scheme 
layout 

Appendix 3 – Copy Appropriation notice and accompanying plans 

Appendix 4 – Summary of Appropriation Notice Consultation responses

Appendix 5 – containing Land Registry Official Copies, conveyance details and 
historical maps 

Appendix 6 - Plan showing current features in Penny Pie Park

Appendix 7  - Plan showing the proposed improvements to Penny Pie Park

Appendix 8  - Plan showing location of  Pogmoor Recreation Ground and Sugden's 
(Stocks Lane) Recreation Ground that will also benefit from improvements as part 
of the mitigations .

Page 27



18

17. BACKGROUND PAPERS

The full 105 responses are available to the decision makers to view via Barnsley 
MBC Legal Services.

A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement approved Cabinet report 
(Cab.25.07.2018/15)

A628 Dodworth Road / Broadway Junction Improvement Planning Application 
Reference: 2018/0965

Jobs and Business Plan 2014 – 2017 (3 year review)

Housing Strategy 2014 -2033

Adoption Of The Local Plan Cabinet report (cab12.12.2018/8)

Barnsley’s Adopted Local Plan and Policies Map

If you would like to inspect background papers for this report, please email 
governance@barnsley.gov.uk so that appropriate arrangements can be made

Financial Implications/Consultation

………………………………………………………..
(To be signed by senior Financial Services officer where no 
financial implications)

Page 28

mailto:governance@barnsley.gov.uk


AREA OF LAND TO BE APPROPRIATED

FOR HIGHWAY PURPOSES (Area = 1.133 Ha)

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

 

E

N

T

R

A

N

C

E

T

O

 

H

O

R

I

Z

O

N

A

6

2

8

 

D

O

D

W

O

R

T

H

 

R

O

A

D

P

O

G

M

O

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

HORIZON 

CAR PARK

PENNY PIE PARK BOUNDARY

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

proceedings. 100022264 (2009).

Drawing No.

Date

File

Drawn

Checked

Scale

SPECTEMUR AGENDO

Metropolitan Borough Council

P.O. Box 601, Westgate Plaza One, Westgate

Barnsley.  S70 9FA

Tel. (01226) 770770  Fax. (01226) 772222

Paul Castle  Service Director, Place Directorate

Environment & Transportation (Business Unit 6)

HD/7122127/PH017122127.1

JAN 2019

1:1250 @A3

AJ

FOR HIGHWAY PURPOSES

PENNY PIE  PARK  APPROPRIATION OF LAND

COMPUTER FILE NAME

P
age 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
100.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
500.000



T
his page is intentionally left blank



WHITE HILL AVENUE

NEW ACCESS ROAD

POGMOOR ROAD CLOSED TO

VEHICULAR TRAFFIC AT JUNCTION

WITH DODWORTH ROAD

POGMOOR ROAD CLOSED TO

VEHICULAR TRAFFIC

MULTI USE GAMES AREA (MUGA)

AND OUTDOOR GYM

EXISTING EMERGENCY HELICOPTER

LANDING AREA TO BE  RELOCATED

LOCALISED

CARRIAGEWAY

WIDENING

LOCALISED

CARRIAGEWAY

WIDENING

NEW HORIZON COMMUNITY COLLEGE

ACCESS TIE IN TO EXISTING CAR PARK

CIRCULATORY ACCESS ROAD

A

6

2

8

 

D

O

D

W

O

R

T

H

 

R

O

A

D

A

6

2

8

 
D

O

D

W

O

R

T

H

 
R

O

A

D

ACOUSTIC BARRIER

EXAMPLE OF PARK ENTRANCE ARCHWAY FEATURE

EXAMPLE OF PARK ENTRANCE ARCHWAY FEATURE

EXAMPLE OF PARK ENTRANCE ARCHWAY FEATURE

PARK BENCH TYPE

LOW TIMBER BOLLARD & RAIL

PARK BOW TOP FENCING

GABION BASKETS WITH COURSED STONE

FRONT AND SOLID CORE 1.5m HIGH

D

A

L

E

S

W

O

O

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

H

A

R

E

W

O

O

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

B

E

A

U

M

O

N

T

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

G

A

R

D

E

N

 

C

O

U

R

T

W

H

I

T

E

 

H

I

L

L

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

S
T

.
 
M

A
R

T
I
N

S
 
C

L
O

S
E

S
T

.
 
C

A
T

H
E

R
I
N

E
S

 
W

A
Y

B

A

R

N

S

L

E

Y

 

T

O

 

H

U

D

D

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

HORIZON COMMUNITY COLLEGE

XMAS TREE LOCATION

WITH POWER FEED

EXISTING CYCLE ROUTE TO BROADWAY (VIA

CROWN HILL ROAD, MOORLAND AVENUE

AND WOODLAND DRIVE)

PARK CONTAINER WITH

POWER & WATER FEED

& PAVED AREA

MAINTENANCE ACCESS

AND GATE

MAINTENANCE ACCESS

AND GATE

POTENTIAL AREA FOR

 COMMUNITY ARTWORK

GABION BASKETS TO BE OPEN TEXTURED

FOR ABSORPTIVE NOISE PROPERTIES

PLAY AND LEISURE NEAP

EXAMPLE OF MUGA

NEIGHBOURHOOD EQUIPPED

AREA FOR PLAY (NEAP)

POTENTIAL BUS STOP LOCATION - TO BE AGREED

POTENTIAL BUS STOP LOCATION - TO BE AGREED

NOTES

CONSULTATION IS CURRENTLY TAKING PLACE WITH SYPTE AND

STAGECOACH OVER NEW BUS STOP PROVISION

CONSULTATION IS ONGOING WITH EMBRACE CHILDRENS CHARITY

REGARDING ACCOMMODATING THEIR AIR AMBULANCE EITHER ON

OR OFF SITE

CARRIAGEWAY

3M WIDE SHARED USE FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

KEY

SIGNALISED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING POINT

(INCORPORATING CYCLE FACILITIES WHERE REQUIRED)

PROPOSED STOP LINE

GREEN SPACE

PROPOSED BOW TOP FENCING

PROPOSED LOW TIMBER BOLLARD AND RAIL

FOOTWAY

PROPOSED AREAS OF REPLACEMENT TREE PLANTING

INCORPORATING ORNAMENTAL SHRUB PLANTING,

NATIVE TREE AND SHRUB SCREEN PLANTING - REFER

TO LANDSCAPE VISUAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

TREE PROTECTION AREA

FOR EXISTING STORY TRAIL REFER TO DWG HD/7122127/C/2

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

proceedings. 100022264 (2009).

Date
Amendments

ByRev.

SPECTEMUR AGENDO

Project

Metropolitan Borough Council

Date

File

Checked

Drawn

Drawing title

Scale

Drawing No.

P.O. Box 601, Westgate Plaza One, Westgate

Barnsley.  S70 9FA

Revision

Tel. (01226) 770770  Fax. (01226) 772222

Paul Castle  Service Director Place Directorate

Environment & Transportation (Business Unit 6)

A628 DODWORTH RD / BROADWAY

HD/7122127/C/1

1:500

GENERAL LAYOUT

JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT

NOV 2018

A

A Addition of proposed park features, noise

barriers, trees to be removed/retained,

new trees to be planted and change to key

Nov 18

P
age 31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
140.644

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
140.678

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
139.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
139.569

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
135.332

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
135.374

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
135.396

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
135.493

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
135.540

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
138.333

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
137.358

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
136.217

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
136.903

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
136.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
138.058

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
137.276

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
136.027

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
137.099

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
136.993

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
137.896

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
138.063

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
138.126

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
141.546

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
138.791

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
139.166

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
138.991

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
139.070

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
138.889

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
138.935

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
139.077

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
139.329

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
139.097

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
139.268

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
138.660

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
138.511

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
139.172

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
142.347

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
141.970

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
142.223

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
141.414

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
141.847

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
141.831

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
141.914

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
141.975

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
141.903

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
141.940

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
142.072

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
142.084

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
142.035

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
142.086

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
141.888

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
141.925

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
141.887

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
141.945

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
140.083

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
139.736

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
141.891

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
141.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
141.999

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
141.056

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
140.995

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
141.503

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
141.576

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
141.515

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
141.386

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
141.143

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
141.481

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
141.226

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
141.135

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
141.010

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
140.995

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
141.047

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
141.162

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
141.115

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
141.077

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
141.050

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
141.051

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
141.422

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
141.403

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
141.441

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
141.922

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
141.764

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
141.767

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
141.798

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
141.842

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
141.952

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
141.960

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
141.948

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
141.942

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
141.802

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
142.072

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
144.160

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
143.061

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
S10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
S10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
S9.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
S8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
S8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
S8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
BROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
E 150.715

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
R 153.669

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
R 150.691

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
R 150.695

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
E 150.199

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
R 152.977

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
E 150.206

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
R 152.699

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
R 152.535

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
E 150.267

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
E 150.334

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
R 152.357

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
E 149.471

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
E 148.962

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
R 151.562

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
R 150.127

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
E 148.108

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
R 151.231

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
E 147.877

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
E 148.672

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
R 151.343

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
E 149.089

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
R 151.781

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
R 152.583

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
E 149.713

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
R 151.832

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
E 149.965

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
R 152.978

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
R 152.399

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
E 147.672

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
R 153.836

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
E 151.104

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
149.532

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
146.748

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
148.710

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
E 144.831

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
E 144.891

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
R 148.108

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
E 148.163

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
R 149.801

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
E 148.107

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
E 147.684

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
E 148.744

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
R 151.916

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
R 151.117

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
E 148.262

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
E 147.846

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
R 150.808

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
R 150.358

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
R 150.736

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
E 144.495

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
R 146.782

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
E 147.559

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
R 148.969

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
E 147.070

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
R 149.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
E 147.071

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
R 149.792

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
E 147.119

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
E 146.728

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
R 149.243

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
R 148.909

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
E 146.532

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
E 143.701

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
R 149.580

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
E 147.298

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
E 148.842

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
E 150.006

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
E 151.910

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
E 151.545

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
E 148.847

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
E 147.295

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
E 149.977

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
R 151.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
R 153.657

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
R 154.123

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
R 151.573

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
E 145.230

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
R 148.854

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
E 145.670

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
E 145.139

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
R 147.811

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
E 145.765

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
R 148.418

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
R 149.521

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
E 146.449

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
E 149.928

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
E 143.630

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
E 146.339

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
R 148.946

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
R 146.579

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
R 146.591

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
E 144.099

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
E 144.918

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
R 147.227

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
R 153.385

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
R 147.106

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
R 147.935

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
E 145.334

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
R 148.390

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
E 142.323

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
R 146.875

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
E 142.136

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
E 139.621

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
R 142.856

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
E 143.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
R 147.150

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
R 147.343

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
E 143.843

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
E 143.805

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
R 147.218

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
E 140.054

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
R 143.001

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
R 144.793

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
E 141.855

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
E 142.745

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
R 145.682

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
R 147.034

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
E 143.717

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
R 144.799

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
R 144.717

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
E 141.811

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
E 141.041

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
R 144.313

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
R 143.783

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
E 137.912

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
R 143.892

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
R 143.019

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
E 140.763

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
E 139.876

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
R 143.294

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
R 140.891

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
E 137.521

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
R 139.596

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
140.644

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
140.678

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
139.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
139.569

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
135.332

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
135.374

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
135.396

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
135.493

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
135.540

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
138.333

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
137.358

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
136.217

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
136.903

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
136.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
138.058

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
137.276

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
136.027

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
137.099

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
136.993

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
137.896

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
138.063

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
138.126

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
141.546

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
138.791

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
139.166

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
138.991

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
139.070

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
138.889

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
138.935

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
139.077

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
139.329

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
139.097

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
139.268

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
138.660

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
138.511

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
139.172

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
142.347

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
141.970

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
142.223

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
141.414

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
141.847

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
141.831

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
141.914

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
141.975

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
141.903

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
141.940

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
142.072

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
142.084

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
142.035

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
142.086

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
141.888

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
141.925

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
141.887

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
141.945

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
140.083

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
139.736

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
141.891

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
141.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
141.999

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
141.056

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
140.995

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
141.503

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
141.576

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
141.515

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
141.386

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
141.143

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
141.481

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
141.226

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
141.135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
141.010

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
140.995

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
141.047

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
141.162

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
141.115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
141.077

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
141.050

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
141.051

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
141.422

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
141.403

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
141.441

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
141.922

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
141.764

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
141.767

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
141.798

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
141.842

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
141.952

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
141.960

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
141.948

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
141.942

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
141.802

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
142.072

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
144.160

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
143.061

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
Li

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
Ser

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
ICCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
TL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
S10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
S10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
S9.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
S8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
S8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
S8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
S7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
S6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
S4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
S3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
S3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
S2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
S2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
S1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
S1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
Sap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
POGMOOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
251

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
257

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
259

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
261

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
263

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
265

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
267

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
222

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
224

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
204a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
196

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
190

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
247

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
186

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
243

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
9 TO 34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
GROSVENOR WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
MHCL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
1.5m HIGH GABION BASKETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
3.0m HIGH ACOUSTIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
3.0m HIGH ACOUSTIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
3.0m HIGH ACOUSTIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
MILESTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
1.5m HIGH GABION BASKETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
1.0m HIGH GABION BASKETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
1.0m HIGH GABION BASKETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
2.4m HIGH ACOUSTIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
S5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
S8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
S5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
S4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
S4.0



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 3  

Copy of Appropriation Notice and Plan 
 
 
 
 
BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 122(1), (2A) 
APPROPRIATION OF PUBLIC OPEN SPACE 
 
PROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF LAND AT PENNY PIE PARK, DODWORTH ROAD, BARNSLEY 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council intends to appropriate for 

public highway purposes an area of approximately 1.133 hectares of land at Penny Pie Park, Dodworth 

Road, Barnsley. The land is part of land presently classed as Public Open Space. The land is intended 

to be used for the purpose of a new highway scheme to alleviate traffic congestion and thereby to 

reduce air pollution.  

 

A copy of the plan showing the area in question may be inspected free of charge during normal office 

hours at Central Library, Wellington House, 36 Wellington Street, Barnsley, S70 1WA. (Plan reference: 

HD 7122127-PH01). It can also be viewed at www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/regeneration/key-projects/ 

 

Any person having any objection to the proposed appropriation should state the grounds of their 

objection in writing and send it, to be received NO LATER THAN 8th April 2019, either by post to  

A.C Frosdick LLB, Dip LG, Executive Director of Core Services and Solicitor to the Council, 

BMBC Legal Services, PO Box 600, Barnsley S70 9EZ, or by e-mail to pennypiepark@barnsley.gov.uk, 

quoting reference CR/HT/401/01 

David Shepherd 

Service Director, Regeneration and Property  

Dated 8th March 2019  

Page 33

mailto:pennypiepark@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
 

P
age 34



Appendix 4  

 Summary of Appropriation Notice Consultation Responses 

 
Generic Points Raised 

 

1. There are comments that “there is no evidence” that the gyratory will 
achieve its objective of remedying the congestion on Dodworth Road. 

 
The contention that there is no evidence that the gyratory will achieve its objective is 
incorrect. The assessment of the proposal,  alternative solutions which included 
alternative Junction Layouts was presented  in the report fully considered by 
Planning Regulatory Board on 18th December 2018 .Each scheme was properly 
modelled by experienced highway consultants using industry standard software and 
compared on the basis of relevant criteria including congestion alleviation and cost. 
The other schemes considered and rejected are also summarised in section 5, 
consideration of alternative approaches section of this cabinet report. 
 

2. That the highway scheme will have a harmful effect on air quality.   
 
This issue was a relevant matter in the decision whether or not to grant planning 
permission. The issue of air quality was fully assessed in the report considered by 
Planning Regulatory Board on 18th December 2018  which advised that the scheme 
would in some parts give rise to a “slight adverse” impact and in others “negligible” or 
a “slight to substantial” beneficial” impact.  
 

3. That the highway scheme will have a harmful effect on neighbouring 
occupants from traffic noise. 

 
The issue of noise was fully assessed in the report considered by Planning 
Regulatory Board on 18th December 2018 and advised that with the introduction of 
noise mitigations on the west and north boundary adjacent Pogmoor Road and the 
boundary with the railway line/Pogmoor Recreation Ground in the form of 1.5m high 
gabion basket wall;  to the east in the form of 3m acoustic fence which would sit 
alongside the existing vegetation on that boundary to limit noise affecting the houses 
beyond this boundary located on Grosvenor Walk and Dodworth Road; a  similar 
2.4m high fence built in the grass verge further to the south on the other side of 
Dodworth Road for the purposes of reducing sound levels at Firs Care Home at the 
side of the existing entrance to Horizon, the vast majority of properties within the 
noise calculation area will not experience significant adverse impacts. Some 
properties stand to benefit from the scheme if they accept a Noise Insulation 
Regulation package of measures which will be made available to the eligible 
residents. Nine properties were identified as likely to experience significant adverse 
impacts and this negative consequence was fully considered and balanced against 
the advantages that the scheme would give rise to in relation to congestion 
alleviation. 

4. Loss of Mature trees  
 
Impact of tree loss was fully assessed in the report fully considered by Planning 
Regulatory Board on 18th December 2018.     Given the arboricultural implications of the 

proposal are naturally something that the Tree Officer is not supportive of , however he 
recognises that the scheme has been designed to limit the impacts on trees as far as 
possible and welcomes the most up to date mitigation plans which include substantial 
amount of replacement tree planting by way of compensation, which at least equals the 

number of trees that are to be removed. The loss of trees is recognised in the report and Page 35



is properly balanced against the advantages of the scheme referred to above. One 
correspondent referred to the “fact” that the existing mature trees would be replaced 
by small saplings. This is not the case as extra heavy standard trees are proposed to 
be planted.  
 

5. Highway Safety  
 
This representation is confined to the possibility of safety issues arising from the 
highway development itself and ignores the wider concern, which BMBC must take 
account of as highway authority of risks to safety arising from congestion and 
queuing of traffic on Dodworth road. In particular reference is made to the risk in the 
future that queuing traffic will back onto the carriageway of the M1 itself during rush 
hour periods. As to safety on and around the new gyratory highway this has been the 
subject of a stage 1 safety audit and will be subject to further staged audits of safety 
The issue of safety was fully assessed the report fully considered by Planning 
Regulatory Board on 18th December 2018 and the conclusion reached was following 
completion of the detailed design an independent Stage 2 Road Safety Audit will be 
commissioned to identify any safety concerns which will be addressed prior to the 
construction phase. In addition, following the Stage 3 Road Safety Audit, which will 
be carried out on completion of the project, any recommendations will be considered 
and resolved and where appropriate implemented. 
 

6. Habitat Loss 
 
A number of correspondents referred to habitat loss as a result of the development 
and loss of trees. This issue was fully assessed in the report to Planning Regulatory 
Board on 18th December 2018 under the heading  Biodiversity,   The report said 
Overall the value of the existing habitat on the site and likelihood of significant 
numbers of protected species is sufficiently low that the significant impacts are not 
envisaged. The site is not designated for its ecological value. In addition the impacts 
can be reduced via mitigation including carrying out tree removal works outside of 
bird nesting season, ensuring that no bat roosts are present prior to felling works, 
replacement tree planting and the provision of new habitat to encourage protected 
species to nest and roost at the site. 
 

7. Most correspondents refer to the loss of the green space. Epithets such 
as “destruction” “the park being taken away” and “vandalism” are used 

 
The factual position is that a significant portion of the park will be lost to the new 
gyratory highway but 77.3% of the park will remain. Other correspondents refer to 
the harm to the character and tranquillity of the Park which will result from the 
development.  
 
The Council accept that there will be an impact on the character of the park. Part of 
the area will be lost to the development and its character will be affected adversely 
by the new road. However the Council are required as the authority for both 
recreational land and highways to look at wider issues than the preservation of the 
park in its existing form. The Council were required to address the highway issue 
and looked at a range of solutions to the problem (See section 5 of this report). The 
comparative merits of the solutions were fully assessed prior to the making of a 
planning application and the reasons for choosing this particular scheme over rival 
schemes was fully detailed and explained and considered by Planning Regulatory 
Board on 18th December 2018. Once this scheme was judged to be the best and 
most effective approach the Council was left in the difficult position of balancing the 
benefits of the highway scheme against the harm that would be caused to the 
amenity of the park and local residents. In undertaking that balance the Council Page 36



came to the conclusion that the case for approving and implementing the gyratory 
highway scheme was more compelling than maintaining the park in its current form. 
The park will not be completely lost 22.7% will be given over to the highway scheme.  
In assessing overall public interest and the competing interests of open space and 
highway improvement the Council conclude that, in this case, the need for the 
highway works must prevail and as such the use of that part of Penny Pie Park 
proposed to be appropriated to Highway use is no longer required to be held by the 
Council for its existing purpose as public open space. In reaching this conclusion 
account was also taken of the works designed to improve that part of the park that 
will be retained following the implementation of the highway scheme. These 
improvements are detailed in section 4, the proposed scheme and its objectives of 
the cabinet report. 
 
 

Specific Points Raised 
 

8. That the highway scheme would attract more traffic which would rapidly 
remove any benefit.  

 
The independent consultant that was commissioned to provide the Traffic 
Assessment, submitted in support of the Planning Application, has taken into 
account future traffic growth up to 2033. 
 

9. That the highway scheme would facilitate the development at Capitol 
Park (MU1) which would have the effect described in 8 above  

 
Evidence shows that there are compelling reasons to increase the capacity of the 
Dodworth Road/Broadway/Pogmoor Road junction based on existing congestion and 
committed development.  However, to inform the amount of additional capacity that 
needs to be provided it is necessary to consider likely levels of future growth.  The 
Council’s Core Strategy, the current policy in place when the scheme was presented 
for consideration by Planning Regulatory Board on 18th December 2018, proposed 
to deliver 21,000 homes and 17,500 jobs on top of base development, and formed 
part of the current development plan for the borough until 2026, identifying Urban 
Barnsley as the area where the most development should take place in order to 
enhance Barnsley’s role as a sub-regional town.   
 
Future growth aspirations of the borough are also identified in the Economic and 
Housing Strategies and the Local Plan, which has now been adopted (Jan 2019) 
superseding the Core Strategy. This aims to significantly increase the local business 
base and number of new jobs in an attempt to close a substantial gap between the 
borough’s job density and the regional and national averages.  This is considered 
essential for the wellbeing and prosperity of the borough and its residents. The Core 
Strategy was not a spatial plan, so traffic modelling such a strategy presents a 
challenge.  However Aecom have concluded that “it seems very reasonable to 
expect that the Core Strategy development would have a similar spatial distribution 
to the development of the emerging local plan, given the development levels in the 
emerging local plan and Core Strategy are broadly similar, the difference being that 
the Core Strategy would be delivered a few years earlier (2026 as opposed to 2033). 
Therefore the results of the local plan traffic modelling assessment for the 
junction/corridor can be used as a reasonable proxy for the purposes of 
understanding the potential impact of the Core Strategy”. 
 

10 . Adverse effect on emergency services and impact on use of the park as a 
landing pad for the air ambulance. 

 Page 37



Reduction of congestion will benefit emergency service vehicles along with other 
users of the highway. The landing area is used by the Embrace Yorkshire and 
Humber Helicopter Service. Liaison is on-going with Embrace and it was confirmed 
in the Planning Report that this service would still continue to be permitted to land in 
the park after the development was completed. However the Council are aware that 
this service has been seeking alternatives. 

11. It was suggested that the congestion problem could be solved by 
creating a 3rd lane to the slip road at junction 37 or allow use of the hard 
shoulder   

 
The impact of the proposed highway scheme was fully considered by Highways 
England as a statutory consultee of Planning Process, and they have provided a 
formal response in favour of the planning application.  
 
 

12.  Particular concern about the safety of Horizon students leaving the 
school.  

 
Reference is made to the answer given in response to objection no.5 above.  
Horizon were consulted as part of the planning application process and did not 
object to the proposed development. Safety on and around the new gyratory 
highway  has been the subject of a stage 1 safety audit and will be subject to further 
staged audits of safety. The issue of safety was fully assessed the report fully 
considered by Planning Regulatory Board on 18th December 2018 and the 
conclusion reached was following completion of the detailed design an independent 
Stage 2 Road Safety Audit will be commissioned to identify any safety concerns 
which will be addressed prior to the construction phase.  In addition, following the 
Stage 3 Road Safety Audit, which will be carried out on completion of the project, 
any recommendations will be considered and resolved and where appropriate 
implemented. 
In addition, the scheme introduces a significant number of signalised toucan 
(pedestrian / cycle) crossing points.  

 
13.  A particular highway issue was raised about the gyratory leading to 

traffic hurtling down Shaw Lane onto Racecommon Road and hence to 
Townend Roundabout  

 
A major highway improvement scheme will lead to redistribution of traffic around the 
network. This is true for the construction work phase and following completion of the 
project. However, with respect to Shaw Lane traffic calming measures are already in 
place to reduce traffic speed. 
 

14.  Many correspondents complained that this proposal runs contrary to   
National policy and the approach being taken in a number of Cities 
(including Leeds and Sheffield) that congestion in future would be 
addressed by restricting access by vehicles to urban areas/town 
centres.  

 
The West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) Transport Strategy (August 2017) 
makes a very brief reference to “balancing the needs for traffic access with creating 
spaces that people can live in and enjoy”.  The Strategy however doesn’t provide 
any specifics of how this would be achieved and the Leeds Transport Strategy is 
silent on this matter.     
 
The approach taken by Sheffield in their Transport Strategy (June 2018), is to give 
certain roads different designations, and dependant on the designation, vehicle Page 38



access can be restricted.  However the Sheffield Transport Strategy is clear this 
does not apply to roads designed to handle large volumes of traffic or to key public 
transport corridors.  This approach would therefore not be appropriate for Dodworth 
Road.   
 
There is also no contradiction with national policy as the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) – February 2019, is silent on restricting vehicle access to 
urban/town areas.   
 
The NPPF does in section 102 encourage Local Authorities to identify and pursue 
opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public transport use.  Improving bus 
journey times and punctuality of services along Dodworth Road will help achieve this 
and align with the Barnsley Transport Strategy’s approach to promoting better 
connectivity.  BMBC also in February 2019 adopted an Active Travel Strategy and is 
currently working on developing an Implementation Plan which will promote walking 
and cycling in Barnsley Town Centre and surrounding areas.       
 
 

15.  A number of correspondents referred to the high likelihood that the 
scheme would fail like other highway schemes; Birdwell, 
Lundwood/Cundy Cross.  

 
 
The Council was required to address the highway congestions issues and looked at 
a range of solutions to the problem (See section 5 of this report). The comparative 
merits of the solutions were fully assessed prior to the making of a planning 
application and the reasons for choosing this particular scheme over rival schemes 
was fully detailed and explained and considered by Planning Regulatory Board on 
18th December 2018. The independent consultant that was commissioned to provide 
the Traffic Assessment, submitted in support of the Planning Application, has taken 
into account future traffic growth up to 2033. Similar congestion schemes that have  
been implemented at Birdwell has proved successful. 

16. A specific respondent  draws attention to a Freedom of Information 
response received in relation to the scheme.  

 
No further comment to the response provided in the Freedom of Information reply. 
 

 
17. A correspondent suggests that much of the congestion could be 

resolved from providing a one way traffic system for Horizon which 
would entail vehicles exiting the School on Broadway.  

 
The Council was required to address the highway congestions issues and looked at 
a range of solutions to the problem (see section 5 of this report). The comparative 
merits of the solutions were fully assessed prior to the making of a planning 
application and the reasons for choosing this particular scheme over rival schemes 
was fully detailed and explained and considered by Planning Regulatory Board on 
18th December 2018. The independent consultant that was commissioned to provide 
the Traffic Assessment, submitted in support of the Planning Application, has taken 
into account future traffic growth up to 2033. 
 
 

18. That there is already insufficient open space with in the local area. That 
Dodworth has the least provision of open space compared with other wards. 
That there is no alternative park within reasonable distance. That 90% of the 

park would be lost as a result of the development? Page 39



 
The Council was required to address the highway issue and looked at a range of 
solutions to the problem (see section 5 of this report). The comparative merits of the 
solutions were fully assessed prior to the making of a planning application and the 
reasons for choosing this particular scheme over rival schemes was fully detailed 
and explained and considered by Planning Regulatory Board on 18th December 
2018. Once this scheme was judged to be the best and most effective approach the 
Council was left in the difficult position of balancing the benefits of the highway 
scheme against the harm that would be caused to the amenity of the park and local 
residents. In undertaking that balance the Council came to the conclusion that the 
case for approving and implementing the gyratory highway scheme was more 
compelling than maintaining the park in its current form. The park will not be 
completely lost, 22.7% will be given over to the highway scheme.  In assessing 
overall public interest and the competing interests of open space and highway 
improvement the Council conclude that, in this case, the need for the highway works 
must prevail and as such the use of that part of Penny Pie Park proposed to be 
appropriated to Highway use is no longer required to be held by the Council for its 
existing purpose as public open space. In reaching this conclusion account was also 
taken of the works designed to improve that part of the park that will be retained 
following the implementation of the highway scheme. These improvements are 
detailed in section 4, the proposed scheme and its objectives of the cabinet report.  
 
 

 
19.  That the use would prejudice the use of the park for fairs and galas. 

 
The council would not be opposed to the use of the site for fairs, Galas etc and these 
would be considered upon their merits as per elsewhere within the borough. 
 

 
20.  The park has had a lot of investment recently which would be wasted if the 

scheme went ahead. 
 
The park will not be completely lost, 22.7% will be given over to the highway 
scheme.  In assessing overall public interest and the competing interests of open 
space and highway improvement the Council conclude that, in this case, the need for 
the highway works must prevail and as such the use of that part of Penny Pie Park 
proposed to be appropriated to Highway use is no longer required to be held by the 
Council for its existing purpose as public open space. In reaching this conclusion 
account was also taken of the works designed to improve that part of the park that 
will be retained following the implementation of the highway scheme. These 
improvements are detailed in section 4, the proposed scheme and its objectives of 
the cabinet report.  
Assets invested in the park will be retained where possible e.g. nature trail carvings 
and park equipment.  
 

21. The Park is designated in the Local Plan as Green Space. 
 
The Council was required to address the highway issue and looked at a range of 
solutions to the problem (see section 5 of this report). The comparative merits of the 
solutions were fully assessed prior to the making of a planning application and the 
reasons for choosing this particular scheme over rival schemes was fully detailed 
and explained and considered by Planning Regulatory Board on 18th December 
2018. Once this scheme was judged to be the best and most effective approach the 
Council was left in the difficult position of balancing the benefits of the highway 
scheme against the harm that would be caused to the amenity of the park and local Page 40



residents. In undertaking that balance the Council came to the conclusion that the 
case for approving and implementing the gyratory highway scheme was more 
compelling than maintaining the park in its current form. The park will not be 
completely lost 22.7% will be given over to the highway scheme.   
 
In reaching this conclusion account was also taken of the works designed to improve 
that part of the park that will be retained following the implementation of the highway 
scheme. These improvements are detailed in section 4 (The proposed scheme and 
its objectives) of the cabinet report. 
 
 
 

 

Many of the issues raised by correspondents are not properly concerned with the 

question of whether the land is no longer required to be held by the Council for its 

existing purpose as public open space. The majority of the points relate to asserted 

harm that will arise from the loss of the existing use and its supplanting with the 

proposed use. These issues are proper considerations for the determination of the 

planning application and were fully assessed in reaching the conclusion that 

planning permission should be granted. 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6  
Plan showing current features in Penny Pie Park obtained from Imagery©2019 Google Map data © Google United Kingdom 

 

 

 

Nature 

trail 

Sand pit left over 

from fair 

Vehicle hard standing area 

for maintenance and 

Embrace Children’s Charity 

Children’s play 

equipment 

sub station 
Horizon car 

park 

Flexi pave 

Multi use games 

areas (MUGA) 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



G

A

R

D

E

N

C

O

U

R

T

W

H

I

T

E

 

H

I

L

L

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

B

A

R

N

S

L

E

Y

 

T

O

 

H

U

D

D

E

R

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

c
a
b
le

 rid
e
 w

ith
 ra

m
p
  5

-1
6
y
r

TGO Full Body

Multi Gym

n

a

t

t

e

r

t

u

b

e

s

r

u

b

b

e

r

 

n

e

s

t

 

s

w

i

n

g

4

 

s

e

a

t

 

s

w

i
n

g

s

ladybird

springie

helicopter

springie

roundabout

s

e

e

s

a

w

l

o

w

r

o

t

a

t

o

r

M

U

G

A

0

.

3

1

.

2

1

.

2

1

.

2

1

.

8

1

.

2

1

.

2

1

.

8

1

.

2

H

I

C

 

1

.

2

m

4

1

.

5

m

²

H

I

C

 

2

.

4

m

4

6

m

²

HORIZON

COLLEGE CAR

PARK

'LOVE'

'WHERE'

'YOU LIVE'

'PENNY'

'PIE'

'PARK'

log seat

story

board

Christmas

tree

B

B

500m

client

project

drwn bydatescale

drawing title

drawing no

Tel 01924 281164.  Mob 07966 515360.   e-mail catriona@cflandscape.co.uk
Oakleigh, Healey Road, Ossett, West Yorkshire  WF5 8LN

SKETCH PROPOSALS

PENNY PIE PARK

BARNSLEY MBC

PPP/557/01

rev 4

1:1000 @ A3

April 2019
KE

1:500 @ A1

PLAY AREA

MULTI USE GAMES AREA

BOUNDARY RAILINGS AND ARCHES

VEGETATION

additional orchard tree

to be planted

avenue or feature

tree to be planted

existing shrubs or scrub

existing tree planted by

Friends of Penny Pie Park

metal railings, 1.5m high,

black, with concrete

block/slab mowing margin

proposed shrubs

existing crocus bulbs

metal arch for pedestrian

entrance to park

existing mature tree

3.0m wide Flexistone path

with low key lighting

1.8m wide Flexistone path

maintenance access pooint

1.2m wide Flexistone path

proposed daffodil planting

Acoustic fence, timber, 3m

high

Acoustic wall, gabions,

either 1m high or 1.5m high

picnic bench, Lightmain flat bar, green,

with access for wheelchair or pushchair

seat, Lightmain round bar,

green

BARRIERS

PATHS AND PAVING

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

story trail feature to remain

in current location

story trail feature to be relocated

as shown, with name

proposed woodland

buffer planting

Low mound up to 1m high

Friends of Penny Pie Park

container cafe

central seating area with space for

outdoor cinema and other gatherings

proposed wildflower

meadow

route for fairground vehicles with

reinforced cross over path

paved area with raised dais

welcome board

bin for litter and dog waste,

Wybone MLB/160R

B

Bird and bat boxes to be installed with assistance

of Friends of Penny Pie Park

Rev 3:  7 June 2019.  Small

amendments and minor

additions.

tree to be removed - see below*

* 'Tree Survey and

Arboricultural

Assessment'

updated 28 June

2018 by

Wainwright

Landscape

Architecture.

Rev 4:  10 June 2019.

Addition of trees to be

removed.

P
age 81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
Stump

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
E 144.495

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
R 146.782

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
E 147.559

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
R 148.969

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
E 147.070

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
R 149.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
E 147.071

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
R 149.792

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
E 147.119

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
E 146.728

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
R 149.243

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
R 148.909

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
E 146.532

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
E 143.701

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
R 149.580

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
E 147.298

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
E 148.842

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
E 150.006

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
E 151.910

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
E 151.545

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
E 148.847

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
E 147.295

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
E 149.977

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
R 153.657

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
R 151.573

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
E 145.230

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
R 148.854

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
E 145.670

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
E 145.139

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
R 147.811

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
E 145.765

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
R 148.390

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
E 142.323

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
R 146.875

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
E 142.136

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
E 139.621

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
R 142.856

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
E 143.805

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
196

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
190

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
247

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
186

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
1.5m HIGH GABION BASKETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
DODWORTH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
POGMOOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
GROSVENOR WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
W



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8 

Plan showing location of  Pogmoor Recreation Ground and Sugden's (Stocks Lane) Recreation Ground that will also benefit from improvements as part of the mitigations. Plan 

obtained from Imagery©2019 Google Map data © Google United Kingdom 

 

 

 

 

 

Sugden’s Recreation Ground -

Neighbourhood Equipped Play 

Area (NEAP).  8 pieces of play 

equipment.  Mini orchard and 

seating. 

Penny Pie Park 

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Call-In of Cabinet Decision Cab.10.7.2019/6 - Appropriation of Land at Penny Pie Park for Highway Purposes
	Item 3b - Call in PPP appropriation July 2019_to submit (2)
	Call-In Request Form
	Item 3c - Minutes Extract from the BMBC Cabinet meeting held on 10th July 2019
	Item 3d - Penny Pie Park Report 20190701
	Penny Pie Park App 1
	Sheets and Views
	PH01


	Penny Pie Park App 2
	Sheets and Views
	General Layout


	Penny Pie Park App 3
	Penny Pie Park App 4
	Penny Pie Park App 5
	Penny Pie Park App 6
	Penny Pie Park App 7
	Sheets and Views
	Structure 6A


	Penny Pie Park App 8




